
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCV 

RE(l!ON 4 
SAM Nt'NN 

:ULAN fA FEDERAL CENTER 
01 FORSYTH STREET 

ATLANTA GEORGIA J0303-S%O 

FEB 162011. 

Ms. Joan Sasine 
Bryan Cave LtP 
One Atlanta Center," Fourteenth Floor 
1201 West Peachtree Street, NW 
Atlanta, Georgia 30309 

SUBJECT: 	 J & J Chemi,al Company 
COfi5ent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket No. EPCKA-04-2011-2031\b) 

Dear Ms. Sasine: 

Enclosed please find an executed c-Opy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order 
{CAFO) that resolves the Emergency Planning and Community RighHo~Know Act of 1986 
(EPCRA) matter (Docket No. EPCKA-04-2011-2031(b)) involving J & J Chemical Company. 
The CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 and 
became effective on the date of the filing, 

Also enciosed. please find a copy of tile "Notice of Seeurities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceeding;,," This document puts you on 
notice of your potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) any 
envirollIm.mtal enforcement actions taken by the Environmt'ntal Protection Ageney (EPA). If 
you have any questions with regards to the SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you 
may refcr to the contact phone number itt the bottom of the SEC Notice. 

If you have uny <lucstions, please call Ms. Deanne Grunt at (404) 562-9291. 

Sincerely. 

L~4>~ 
Caron D. Falconer, Chief 
EPCRA Enforcemt:nt Section 

Enclosures 

Jnternet Addre$$ (UAl;. hflp:flwww.~a.gov 
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Vl'iITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


IN THE MATIER OF: ) 
) 

J & J Cherni«11 Company ) Docket Number: EPCRA.04-201l-203i(l>J ~, 
c) 
; ->' 

Respondent. J 
-------) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

I, Nature of the Action 

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Sei..iion 109 of the Comprehen~dve 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 U,S,C 
§ 9609, Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Connnunity Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), 
42 U.S,c. § 11045. and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules ofPrnctice Governing Administrative 
Assessment of Civil Penalties. and the RevocationITennination Qf Suspension of Permits 
(Consolidated Rules). <edified at 40 C.P.R, Part 22, Complainanl i, the Director of the Air. 
Pestit:ides and Toxics Management Division, Region 4, United States Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA). Respondent is J & J Chemicil Company. 

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C.P.R. § 22.18(b), and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony. the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22,!3(b) and 22,IH(b). this Consent Agreemcnt and Final Order 
(CAFO) will simultane-Ously commence and <:oncluue this matter, 

II. PreliminarY Statements 

3. The authority to take aellon under Section 109 ofCERCLA. 42 U,S,C. § 9609. 
and Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S,C, § 11045. is vested in the Administrator of EPA The 
Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority under CERCLA and under EPCRA to the 
Regional Administrators by EPA Delegations 14-31 and 22-3-A, both dated May II. 1994, The 
Regional Adminirnator, Region 4. has redelegated to the Director, Air. Pesticides and Toxics 
Management Division. the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31 dated 
March 8. 1999. and updated August 6.2004. and the authority under EPCRA by EPA Region 4 
Delegation 22-3-A, dated November 8.1994. Pursuant to these delegations. the Director of the 
Au:, Pesticide!; and Toxics Management Division ha... the authority to conunence an enforcement 
action as the Complainant in fbi.. matter. 

4. Respondent, J & J Chemica] COlnpany. is. incorporated in the State of Florida and 
I!; doing business in the State of Georgia. 



5. Respondent is. "pe[1iotf' as defined in Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. 
§ 1l049(7), and 5ectioolO1(21) ofCERCLA, 42 U.s.C. § 9601(21). 

6. Respondent owns and operate-s a "facilityl' as that leffil is defined by Section 
101(9) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.c. § 9601(9) and by Section 329(4) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.C. 
§ 11049(4). 

7. Respondent's facility is located all90 Tram. Tech Drive, Athens, Georgia. 

S. Respondent is an "owner or operator "of the facility as that tcnn i~ defined by 
Section 101(20)(A) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 (20)(A). 

m. EP~ Allegations o(ViolatiOHS 

VIOlations of $celion 103!J!) of CERCLA 

9. Section 102(.) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9602(a). required the AdtoiniSlratorof 
EPA to publish a list of substances designated as hazardous substances which, when released 
inlo the environment, may present substantial danger to pubHc health or welfare or the 
environwent and to promulgate regulation;:; establishing the quantity of any hazardous substance 
the release of which was required to be reported under Se(;tion 103(a) of CERCLA. 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9603(a). EPA has publi.hed and amended such a list, including the corresponding reportable 
quantities (RQ) for those s.ubstances, TItis list, which is codified at 40 C.F,R. Pan 302, was­
initiaUy published on April 4, 1985 (50 Fed. Reg. 13,474), and is perindicaUy amended. 

10. Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and the regulations found at 
40 C'p,R. § 302.6, require a person in charge of a facility or ves.~l to inunediatciy notify the 
National Response Center (}IRe), as soon as he or she has knowledge of a release of a hazardous 
substance from such facility or vc:ssel in an amount equal to, or greater than, the RQ. 

11. Re.'ipondent was in Charge of the facility during the relevant period described 
below. 

12. Formaldehyde i~ a "hazardous substance" as that term is dermed by Section 
101(14) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.C. § 9601(14). widt an RQ of 100 pounds. as specified in 40 C.F.R. 
§ 302.4. 1,4 dichlorobenzene is also a "hazardou:s substance" as that term il$ defmed by Section 
101(14) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.c. § 9601(14). with an RQ of 100 pounds,., specified in 40 C.F.R. 
§ 302.4. 

13. On Juty 28, 2010, release, of fonnaldchyde and 1,4 dichlorobrnzene, both in 
qu.antities exceeding their respective RQ, occurred from Respondent's facility. 

14. EPA alleges that Respondent violated the notification requirements of Section 
103(a) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), by failing to immediately notify the NRC :1., soon as 
Respondent had knowledge of Ule release of fonnaldchyde and 1,4 dichlorobenzene in amount'; 
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cqual to or greater than their respective RQ at Respondent's facility, and is therefore subject to 
the assessment of penalties under Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9609. 

15. Pursuantto Section 109 ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.C. § 9609, and 40 C.P.R. Par! 19, 
EPA may assess a penalty not to exceed 537,500 lur each violation of Section 1 U3(a) of 
CERCLA, 42 lLS.C § 9603(a), uccurring after January 12,2009. Each day a vio1ation of 
Section 103 continut's constitutes u separate violation, Civil penalties under Section 109 of 
CIlRCLA,42 U.S.C. § 9609. may be ""sesscd by Administtative Order. 

16. Section 304(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §11 004(a), and rhe regulations found at 
40 C ,F.R. § 355, Subpart C> require the owner or operator of a facility at which hazardous 
chemicals arc produced, used or stored, to ilmncdiateiy notifY th\! State Emergency Response 
Commission (SERe) and Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) when there has been a 
release of 11 CERCLA ha7.ardous substanct' ur an EPCRA extremely hazardous substance in an 
amount equal to or greater than thc RQ. 

17. Resrmudent WiiS (he owner or operator of the facility during the relevant peri\)d 
dcs<;obed below, 

18. At all times relevant to this matter, the faeiHty produced, used, or stored 
"hazardous chemicals" as deJim:u ut Section 311{ e) of EPCR/\, 42 V.S.c. § 11021 (c)~ and at 
29 C.F.R. § 191O.12oo(c). 

19. Formaldehyde is an "extremely hazardous subShtm::e" as that tern) is defined by 
Section 329(3) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(3), willi an RQ of 100 pounds, as spccilicd at 
40 C .F.K Part 355, Apps. A & R 1 A dichlorobenzene h> a "haLardous substance" as that term is 
detined hy Section 101(14) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9601 (14), with an RQ Qf 100 pounds, as 
spt:dH(;u at 40 CJ:.R. § 302.4. 

2U, On July 28, 201 0, a release oftonnaldehyde and 1.4 dichloroben7ene, at 
quantities exceeding their respective RQ, occurred at Respondent's facility. 

21, EPA alleges thal ResJX>odcnt violated the notification requirem(;nts of Section 
304-(a) of EPCRAI 42 U.S.c. § 1 IO04(a), by tailing tu immediatciy notify the SERe and LEPC 
as soon a~ Respondent had knO\vlcdgc of the release of fonnaldehyde and 1, 4~dichJrobel.lzene in 
amuunts equal to or greater than their resp\!cove RQ at Rc:::pondcnt's facility. and is therefore 
suhja:t to the assessment of pt:nailics under Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §11045, 
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22, {'u"umt to SectioI1325(b) of EPeRA., 42 USc. § l1045(b), and 40 C.F.R. 
Part 19. EPA may assess a penalty of not more than $37,500 fur each violation of Section 304(<1) 
of!'PCRA. 42 U.S.c:. § 11004(0). that occurred after January 12, 2009. Civil penalties under 
Sc{!tion 32S(b) ofF.PCM 42 V.S.C § l1045(b), may he assesst:d by Administrative Order. 

IV. Consent Agreem~.nt 

23. For the purposes of this CAFO. RI.~pondent admits thejurisdkliunal allegations 
set out above but neither admi1s nor dentes the factual allegations sct out above. 

24. Rc::.pondcnt waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeaJ t.lle 
proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

25, Respondent consen0; 10 the aS5\'~ssment ot~ and agrees to pay, lht: chil penalty as 
set lorth in this CAFO. 

26. Respondent certifies that a" of the date ofits exccution of this CAFO, it is in 
compliance with all relevant requiR'TnenlS of CERCLA and FPCRA. 

27. Compliance with the CAPO shaH rewlve the allegations ofviolntion;; contained 
herein. This CAPO shall not utherwi::.c aftcct any liability of Res:pondent to the United States 
other than as expressed herein. ~"either EPA nor Complainant \\'alvcs any right to bring an 
enforcement action I;tgainst Rc::;pondcnt for viohltiOI1 of llny federal or state :..1atute, regulation or 
permit to initiate an action for imminent and substantial end.'lugcrment, or to pllf8ue criminal 
enlorcement. 

28. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by th\;'ir execution. of this 
CAFO. The partie::; agree that the settlement of tills matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAFO is ~onsistenl with the applicabh.~ requirements ofCRRCLA and EPCRA., 

v. Final Order 

29. Rc>pondcnt shall pay a C'ERC'LA civil p<nalty ofTlllRTEEN THOUSAND 
TWO HUNDRED SEVEKTY flV!' DOLLARS ($13,275) pins cumulative interest in the 
amuunt Dr $83.23 lor the CERCLA violations. Payment o;;hall be paid in four quarlt.:rly 
installment~ according to the following schedull:: 

Dar~ Pa:'fmenJ 

March I, 201 I $3345.81 

June 1,2011 $3345.81 

September L 2Ul1 $3345.81 

December 1,2011 $3337.46 
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30. Rl!spondent shaH pay tile CRRCLA civil penalty by forwarding a cashicr1s or 
certified check, payable to "RPA Hazardous Sub:;tance Superfund" to one of the following 
addresses: 

flY M,\!I- BY OVER.."<IGHT 
C 5, Environmental Protection Agency u.s. Bank 
Superfund Payments Attention: Natalie Pearson (314) 41 S4087 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Box 979076 Mail Station SL·MO·C20L 
51. LOllis, Missouri 63197~9000 S1. Loui::., ~vfissouri 63101 

The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket 1':wnber ofth.: CAFO, 

31. Respondent shall pay an EPeRA civil penalty nfTHIRTEEN THOUSAND TWO 
HCNDRFD SEVEKTY FIVE DOLLARS (S1,,275) plus cumulalive interest in the amount of 
583.23 lbr the EPCRA -violations. Pajrmcnt sh~l be paid in four quarterly installments according 
to the following schedule: 

DAte Pay-men! 

March L 2011 $3345.81 

June 1. 2011 $3345.81 

September 1,2011 $3345.81 

December 1. 2011 $3337.46 


32. Respondent shall pay the penalty by torwardl!1S a cashier's or -.:ertHicd check, 
payable to 'Treasurcr, United State~ of America", to the following address: 

The check :ihall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 

BY MAIL jlY OVr:;R..'iIGHT 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 
Fines and Pl,.~naltk;s Attention: Natalie Pearsoll (314) 4! &-4087 
Cil1cinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Bc'x 979077 Mail Station SL·MO·C2GL 

St. Louis, Missouri 63J97~9000 SL Louis, Missouri 63101 


33. At the tim.: llfpaymcnt, Respondent s:halJ send a separate copy of each check, and 
a writtcn statement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following 
persons at the following addresses: 

Regional H_earing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
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Deanne Grant 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air. Pesticides & Tc'xics tvlanagement Division 
61 Forsyth Street, K W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saundi Wilwn 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accountahility 
61 forsyth Street, S.W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

34. If Respondent r"ils to make oue of the installment payments in accordance with 
the sl.:hedult.: set tortb above, and if such payment is nOf made withln 30 days alter the due date, 
that payment plus all subsequent payments {the entire unpaid balanct:) and all aecrued imerest 
shall bc{;omc immediately due and payable Oil the 31 st day from such due date. In addition, 
Respondent shall be liable lor and shall pay administrative handling charges and !ate payment 
penalty charges as described heJow in the event of any such failure or default 

35. Further, if Respondent fails to pay the in~tallmcnt payments in accordance wilh 
the schedule ~et forth above, EPA ill;,!)' refer the debt to a collection agency, a (,.."!edit reporting 
agency, or to lhe Department of Justice for filing ofa wHcction action in the appropriate Unite",l 
State" District Court. In any ~ltch collection action, the validity, amount. and appropriateness of 
the asscs,>cd penalty and of this C AJ?O shall not bt: .sui::i,,-ct to review, 

36, Notwithstanding Respondent's agreement to pay the assessed civil penalty in 
accordance with the installment ~heduk sct forth above, Respondent rna) pay the entire civil 
penalty orTWENTY-SIX THOUSA 'If) FIVE HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS 
($26,550.00) within thirty (30) calendar day, aftc" the date on which a copy of thi, CAFO is 
mailt:d or hand-delivered to Responde11t and, thereby, avoid lhe paym":llt of interest pursuant to 
40 ('.F,R. § 13,) lea), In addition, Respondent may, at any time after commencemem of 
paymenb und(',r the installment schedule. elect to pay the entire principaJ balance remaining, 
together with interest accrued up to the date of such full payment, 

37. Pursuantto 31 V.S.c. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, EPA is entilled to assess 
interc~t and penalties on debts owed to the United States and a charge 10 cover the cost of 
processing and handling u delinquent claim. In accordance 'With 40 C ,F.R. § 13.11(a}, interest on 
any civil penalty assessed in a CAFO begins to ~t:me on the date that a copy of the CAFO is 
mailed or hand-delivered to the Rcspondent. Hmvever, EPA will not SiXk to rccowr interest on 
any amount of such civil penalty that is paid \vilrun thirty (:'0) calendar days after the date on 
which such interest begins tv accrue. h!tcrcst \-vill he a<;scssed at the rale or lhe Lnltcd States 
Treasury tax and loan rate 111 accordance Vyilli 40 C.F.R. *13.11(a). A cha.rge will also be 
assessed to cover the administrative cost". hotll dlrect and indirect, ofoverdue debts. in addition, 
a late payment penalty charge $;hall he applied on any principal amount not paid \virhin 90 days 
of the due date. 
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38. For the purposes of srate and federal inl:omc taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees noi to attempt, to claim a deduction rM any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shaH 
constitute a violation of this eAFn 

39, Complainant and Respomlent sfmll bear their own co~l$ and attorney fees in this 
marter, 

40. This CAPO shall be binding upon the Respond~nl, its successors, and assign~, 

4l. The following indi\,idual is authorized to receivl;:' service for EPA il1 this 
proceeding: 

Caron B. ralconer 
u.s. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxic:> Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, 8.W, 
Atlanta; Georgia 30303 
(404) 562·8451 

42. Each lIDdersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is fully authorl£cd by the party repre:;ented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that 
party to it. 

THiS SECTION INTENTIONALL Y f~EFTBLANK 
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43. The effective date ofthis CAFO shall be the date Dll whieh the CAFO is filed with 
the Regional IIearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

J & JChemical Company 
Respondent 

By: M.. _. .._. (Signature) Date:;;;-J ...j/_ 
NnIUc. 6;c~td T& YL~_~~ (Typed or Printed) 

Title: ~~/l-l' _~ (Typed ur Printed)m 

Management Divisiun 

Rl'gion 4 


APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this ~<.f!:.day of_~ 0-,2011. 

Susan B. Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERIll'ICATE UF SERVI(l} 

I herehy certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy oftht' !orcgoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order, In t~e Matter of) & J Chwjcai CQillRaJIv. Docket 

J\u. EPCRA 04-~O 11-29"-1!b), un the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's internal mail) 
Air, Pesticides & Toxks ~lanagement Division 
U,S. EPA, Region 4 
61 FOfS;1h Street, SW 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Rl)bert Capkm 
Otlice of Roy ironment a! Accolmlability 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street. SW 
Atlanta, Geurgia 30303 

(Via EPA's internal mail) 

Adam Dilts 
Office ofEnvironmental Accountability 
U.S, EPA, Region 4 
61 POfsy1h Street SW 
Atlanta, Gt:orgia 30303 

(Via EPA's intemal mail) 

Joan Sasim: 
Bryan Cave f J ,p 
Ooe Atlanta Center, Fourteenth Floor 
120t West Peachtree Street, NW 

-tCerliiied Mail ~ Return Receipt Requested) 

Atlanta, G~l)rgia 303U9 

\, 

gionu earing - e 
U.S, Fnvir,)nmental Protection Agency, Kegion 4 
Atlanla F(.'cicral Center 
61 Fmsyth Street, S.W, 
Atlanta, GA 3tHO) 
(404)562-9511 
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